
Agenda

Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Thursday, 27 June 2019, 10.00 am
County Hall, Worcester

All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate

Worcestershire County Council

This document can be provided in alternative formats such as Large Print, an audio recording or 
Braille; it can also be emailed as a Microsoft Word attachment. Please contact Democratic 

Services on telephone number 01905 844965 or by emailing 
democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk

Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk

mailto:democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk


DISCLOSING INTERESTS

There are now 2 types of interests:
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests'

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)?

 Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain 
 Sponsorship by a 3rd party of your member or election expenses
 Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 

you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares
 Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer)
 Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 

share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire.

      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you

WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI?
 Register it within 28 days and 
 Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting 

- you must not participate and you must withdraw.
      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'?
 No need to register them but
 You must declare them at a particular meeting where:

 You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have 
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion.

WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY?
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest.

DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI?
Not normally. You must withdraw only if it:

 affects your pecuniary interests OR 
relates to a planning or regulatory matter

 AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

DON'T FORGET
 If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 

and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient   
 Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda 

- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little
 Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 

referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years

  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases.

Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f



Agenda produced and published by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall, Spetchley 
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP. To obtain further information or hard copies of this agenda, please contact 
Emma James/Jo Weston 01905 844965,email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 

All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website 
websitehttp://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees

Date of Issue: Wednesday, 19 June 2019

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Thursday, 27 June 2019, 10.00 am, County Hall, Worcester

Membership

Worcestershire County Council Mr P A Tuthill (Chairman), Ms P Agar, Mr G R Brookes, 
Mr P Grove, Prof J W Raine, Mrs M A Rayner, 
Mr C Rogers, Mr A Stafford and Mr R P Tomlinson

District Councils Mr M Chalk, Redditch District Council
Ms C Edginton-White, Wyre Forest District Council
Mr J Gallagher, Malvern Hills District Council
Mr M Johnson, Worcester City Council
Mrs F Smith, Wychavon District Council
Mrs J Till, Bromsgrove District Council

Agenda
Item No Subject Page No

1 Apologies and Welcome

2 Declarations of Interest and of any Party Whip

3 Public Participation
Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Head of Legal 
and Democratic Services in writing or by email indicating the nature and 
content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am on the working 
day before the meeting (in this case 26 June 2019). Enquiries can be made 
through the telephone number/email address below.

4 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting
Previously circulated

5 Vice Chairman 1 - 2

6 West Midlands Ambulance Service Update 3 - 4

7 Acute Stroke Services 5 - 12

8 Proposed Merger of Worcestershire and Herefordshire NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Groups

13 - 26

9 Health Overview and Scrutiny Round-up 27 - 28

10 Work Programme 2018/19 29 - 32

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees


This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 5
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JUNE 2019

VICE CHAIRMAN

Summary

1. To consider the nomination of a Vice Chairman for the Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (HOSC).

Background

2. Given that the statutory power of health scrutiny rests with the County Council, the 
Chairman of the HOSC is a County Councillor, Paul Tuthill.  To reflect the partnership 
approach to health scrutiny in Worcestershire, the County Council’s constitution states 
that the Vice Chairmanship should be allocated to one of the District Council Members.

Next Steps

3. District Councillors are invited to nominate a Vice Chairman for the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The nominee put forward by the District Council 
Members will need to be agreed by Worcestershire County Council.

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Head of Legal Services) the following 
are the background papers relating to the subject matter of this report:

Worcestershire County Council's Constitution

Page 1

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20088/about_your_council/83/the_councils_constitution


This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 6
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JUNE 2019

WEST MIDLANDS AMBULANCE SERVICE UPDATE

Summary

1. The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) is to receive an update 
from West Midlands Ambulance Service University NHS Foundation Trust (WMAS), 
from the Director of Clinical Commissioning & Service Development.

2. For the benefit of new HOSC Members, West Midlands Ambulance Service was 
authorised as a foundation trust in January 2013 and in line with the provisions of the 
Health and Social Care Act 2012, was licensed as a provider of NHS services on 1 April 
2013.  The Trust serves a population of 5.6 million, covering an area of more than 5000 
square miles across the whole of the West Midlands, including, in addition to 
Worcestershire, Herefordshire, Shropshire, Warwickshire, Staffordshire, Birmingham, 
Solihull and the Black Country.

3. The most recent update to the HOSC was on 14 March 2018 and a link to this 
meeting can be found in the background papers section of this report. 

Scrutiny

4. Whilst discussing the Trust's services in Worcestershire, HOSC members may 
want to reflect on its wider discussions with other local health economy stakeholders, 
including the challenge of servicing rural areas, sustaining services under increasing 
financial pressures, hospital handovers, pressures on A&E, Worcestershire’s growing 
and ageing population and increased partnership working as part of the 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire Sustainable Transformation Partnership.

5. The HOSC receives regular updates from the Lead Scrutiny Member for WMAS 
who regularly attends WMAS public Board Meetings and Members receive the 
WMAS monthly bulletin.

Purpose of the Meeting

6. Members are invited to consider and comment on the information provided and 
whether any further scrutiny work is required at this stage.

Supporting Information 

 Appendix – Presentation to follow

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Page 3

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk


Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report:

 Agendas and Minutes of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 14 
March 2018, 11 January 2017, 22 January 2014 and 19 June 2012 – available on 
the County Council website here

Page 4

http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Act=later&CId=141&D=201607191000&MD=ielistmeetings


AGENDA ITEM 7
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JUNE 2019

ACUTE STROKE SERVICES 

Summary

1. The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) is to be updated on Stroke 
Services in Worcestershire, specifically services provided within acute hospital 
settings when a patient first requires diagnosis and hospital treatment.

2. Representatives from the organisations which commission and provide acute 
stroke services have been invited to the meeting. A Representative from the Stroke 
Association has also been invited to attend.

Background 

3. The Worcestershire NHS website includes more information about strokes: 
www.worcestershire.nhs.uk/stroke/ 

4. A stroke is the equivalent of a heart attack in your brain. There are two types of 
stroke, most strokes are caused by an interruption of the blood supply or blockage to 
the brain. Others are caused by a bleed in the brain. In the United Kingdom, there 
are more than 100,000 strokes each year. Stroke is also the third leading cause of 
death in England each year and the leading cause of disability.

Stroke Services in Worcestershire

5. Since 2012, Hyper Acute and Acute Stroke Services have been centralised at the 
Worcestershire Royal Hospital (WRH) site. The centralised service at WRH provides 
access to specialist acute stroke services to people who have had a stroke.

6. Since March 2017, specialist in-patient stroke rehabilitation has been centralised 
at Evesham Community Hospital. 

7. From previous updates on the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Sustainability 
and Transformation Partnership and the NHS Long Term Plan, HOSC Members will 
be aware that improving outcomes for stroke is a consistent theme of both these 
plans.  

8. The meeting will provide an opportunity for HOSC Members to look at progress 
and performance of acute stroke services and plans to improve outcomes.

Purpose of the Meeting

9. Members are invited to consider and comment on the information provided and 
what it means for improving outcomes for stroke in Worcestershire.

Page 5

http://www.worcestershire.nhs.uk/stroke/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/health/physical_health/conditions/in_depth/stroke/index.shtml


Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

10. In doing so, HOSC Members may look to consider factors such as:
 performance and capacity of acute stroke services
 availability of staff and expertise
 how pressures on Urgent Care impact on stroke services 

Supporting Information

 Appendix 1 - Update on Stroke Services in Worcestershire

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report:

 Agenda and Minutes of Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust Board on 9 
May 2019 – available on the website here    

 Agendas and Minutes of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 5 
March 2019 and 13 December 2016 – available on the website here 

Page 6

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
https://www.worcsacute.nhs.uk/patient-information-and-leaflets/documents/2292-full-trust-board-papers-may-2019/file
http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=141&Year=0


On behalf of:
NHS Redditch and Bromsgrove CCG, NHS South Worcestershire CCG and NHS Wyre Forest CCG

1

Health Overview Scrutiny Committee (HOSC)
Thursday 27 June 2019, 10.00am
Title of Report: Update on Stroke Services in Worcestershire

Report author Anita Roberts Transformation Programme Lead - Stroke and Cancer

Presented by
Mari Gay, Chief Operating Officer and Lead Executive for Quality and 
Performance, Worcestershire CCGs

Recommendation

HOSC are asked to note the following:
 Work being taken at a Worcestershire level to improve stroke services 

and ensure 7-day stroke and TIA service provision;
 Work being taken at an STP level to identify a sustainable 7-day service 

model for stroke services in Herefordshire and Worcestershire;
 The original proposal developed by the STP is to create a centralised 

acute stroke service for Worcestershire and Herefordshire at the 
Worcester Royal Hospital site is no longer feasible due to capital 
constraints at a national level.  Further work is to be undertaken to 
develop an alternative model for sustainable acute stroke services for 
the two counties.

Purpose Assurance  ☒  Decision  ☐  Approval  ☐  Discussion  ☒  Information/noting  
☐

Executive Summary
Within Worcestershire the implementation of the improvement plan for local services continues to be 
delivered. Stroke Sentinel National Audit Programme (SSNAP) has seen an improvement to the 
SSNAP level from Level D to Level C.

However, it is acknowledged that acute stroke services across Herefordshire and Worcestershire STP 
are currently unable to meet the clinical standards for 7-day services. As part of an STP programme, 
several potential service models were identified and assessed, which resulted in four potential service 
models being identified, with two identified for further, more detailed assessment. 

The first service model is to extend existing 5-day consultant led services to 7-days at both 
Worcestershire Royal Hospital and Hereford Hospital. The alternative service model is for 
centralisation of hyper-acute and acute stroke services at the Worcestershire Royal Hospital site for 
both Herefordshire and Worcestershire population, with in-patient and home-based stroke 
rehabilitation services in both counties. 

The deliverability of each service model presents significant challenges particularly around workforce 
(maintaining two services) and estate (centralised model). Workforce plans are currently being 
developed for both service models, with the outcome to develop an innovative workforce to ensure 
clinical sustainability and development opportunities for staff.  Whilst any change of service will be 
subject to a consultation exercise, the preferred service model identified by the STP Stroke Programme 
Board and national leads for stroke is for centralisation of acute stroke services at the Worcestershire 
Royal Hospital site. This aims to provide sustainable acute stroke services for years to come and to 
support the growing demographic need. 

With the challenge of inability to access capital funding, the STP Stroke Programme Board has been 
tasked with developing an alternative service model that will deliver the outcomes of 7-day working, 

Page 7



On behalf of:
NHS Redditch and Bromsgrove CCG, NHS South Worcestershire CCG and NHS Wyre Forest CCG

2

improved performance against key clinical standards and improved access to services for patients who 
have had a stroke.  
 
Background
Acute Stroke services in Worcestershire have faced significant challenges around workforce and 
therefore delivery of key performance and clinical standards, including compliance with the four key 
clinical standards for 7-day service provision in Hyper Acute Stroke Services and some clinical 
standards identified within the Stroke Sentinel National Audit Programme (SSNAP). The Trust is 
currently rated as ‘C’ – reasonable overall - some areas require improvement. A copy of the most 
recent SSNAP report (Jan – March 2019) is shown in Appendix 1. This represents an improvement on 
previous quarterly ratings as shown. 

A local Improvement Plan is in place working across the system to improve key clinical standards such 
as:

 Time to scan (including implementation of straight to scan pathway);
 Time to specialist stroke review;
 Time to HASU;
 Time spent on a stroke ward

The ongoing sustainability of stroke services in Worcestershire, particularly around the medical 
workforce, continues to be a challenge and the STP Stroke Programme Board was established to work 
with partners across the stroke pathway in Herefordshire and Worcestershire to identify a sustainable 
7-day service model for stroke services going forward. Representation on the Programme Board 
includes Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust, Wye Valley NHS Trust, Worcestershire Health 
and Care NHS Trust, Worcestershire CCGs, Herefordshire CCG, Powys Health Teaching Board, West 
Midlands Ambulance Service, Welsh Ambulance Service, Stroke Association, Public Health and 
Regional CVD Network. 

The STP Stroke Programme Board was tasked with identifying an STP service model for stroke across 
the two counties to deliver the following outcomes:

 Delivery of a comprehensive, innovative and effective stroke prevention strategy to reduce the 
overall incidence of stroke through targeted initiatives to improve the health and wellbeing of 
people across Herefordshire and Worcestershire;

 Delivery of a 7-day TIA Service for patients across Herefordshire and Worcestershire;
 Delivery of an acute based stroke service that is available 24 hours 7 days a week with access 

to specialist staff and equipment at all times;
 Ensuring a robust and sustainable workforce plan is in place across the stroke pathway in line 

with the national guidelines and which uses technology to support staff in delivery high quality 
stroke care;

 Delivery of stroke services that meet all key quality and performance standards, including 
access to scan within one hour of admission; access to thrombolysis 24-hours a day, 7 days a 
week; access to HASU within 4-hours, 90% of hospital stay on a specialist stroke ward, access 
to Early Supported Discharge and multi-disciplinary assessment 7-days a week;

 Supporting achievement of an overall high grade (‘A’ or ‘B’) for SSNAP performance across 
both acute and community based stroke services.

Four potential service models were identified by the Programme Board. A high level assessment of 
the service models was undertaken on the following:

 Quality;
 Accessibility;
 Deliverability;
 Strategic fit.

Page 8



On behalf of:
NHS Redditch and Bromsgrove CCG, NHS South Worcestershire CCG and NHS Wyre Forest CCG

3

As a result of the high level assessment, two of the service models were excluded on the grounds of 
deliverability and/or failure to deliver on key clinical standards/requirements. 

The STP Stroke Programme Board supported centralisation as the ‘preferred’ service model in terms 
of deliverability, but also recommended further assessment of extending existing services to 7-days to 
assess deliverability. Further work has been undertaken to confirm the following:

 The detail of the centralised service model; 
 The pathways within the centralised service model, including TIA, mimic, thrombectomy, stroke 

rehabilitation and deteriorating patient pathways;
 The capacity requirements for both service models based on predicted incidence of stroke 

across the STP by 2025;
 Travel time analysis on baseline times (current services) and impact on travel times for patients, 

relatives and carers under the centralised service model;
 Quality and equality impact assessments at a county level for both service models;

As the ‘preferred’ model, the STP Stroke Programme Board requested a Clinical Senate Review to 
help refine the service model and pathways, as well as to advise with regard to the development of a 
sustainable workforce strategy, including the use of digital technology (telemedicine) to support remote 
decision-making and management of patients, as well as supporting the potential development of 
consultant networks to build resilience in to the system. The review started May 2019 but has been 
paused following the national announcement there is unlikely to be any capital available at present. 
This will allow the STP Stroke Programme Board time to confirm the preferred model for stroke services 
across the two counties and how this can be achieved in the absence of significant capital investment.  
In addition, this work will set out the workforce requirements of the preferred service model and the 
overall revenue implications of the proposed changes.

Issues and options
The Table below outlines the key risks and issues to the work programme. A Risk Register is also 
maintained by the STP Stroke Programme Board and at a local level to identify the strategic and 
operational risks, the mitigating actions to be or being taken and expected impact on the risk. 

Current service provision:

Issue Actions
Workforce:
The medical workforce across both 
acute hospital sites is currently 
insufficient to support 7-day 
services and extremely vulnerable 
in terms of service sustainability. 

Business continuity plans in place across the STP. 

Recent Quality Summit outlined a partnership response 
to address short term capacity issues around consultant 
workforce at Hereford Hospital. Other actions include 
development of ACP therapist role, additional investment 
in ESD services, implementation of telemedicine to 
support consultant network across the STP and 
appointment of joint posts particularly around medical 
workforce. 

STP workforce plan is being developed for two county 
and centralised service models, with increased 
opportunity for extended roles and rotational posts. This 
is a medium – long term solution to deliver a clinically 
sustainable and resilient workforce across the STP. 

Page 9



On behalf of:
NHS Redditch and Bromsgrove CCG, NHS South Worcestershire CCG and NHS Wyre Forest CCG

4

Sustainability:
From July 2019, the medical 
workforce at Hereford Hospital will 
be predominantly reliant on locums 
and support from Worcestershire 
through telemedicine. 
Worcestershire medical workforce 
is currently 3.6wte substantive with 
further 0.6wte substantive 
consultant from July 2019. 

Ongoing recruitment plans in place across the STP 
including joint posts to secure substantive posts.

Telemedicine solution identified (kit purchased and IT 
infrastructure required for support telemedicine being 
developed) – reliance dependent on locum position at 
Hereford Hospital. 
 

Page 10



On behalf of:
NHS Redditch and Bromsgrove CCG, NHS South Worcestershire CCG and NHS Wyre Forest CCG

5

Appendix 1: Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust Stroke Sentinel National Audit Programme Quarterly Report April 2018 – March 2019

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 8
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JUNE 2019

PROPOSED MERGER OF WORCESTERSHIRE AND 
HEREFORDSHIRE NHS CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUPS

Summary

1. The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) is asked to note the 
proposed merger of Worcestershire and Herefordshire NHS Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs).

2. A representative from Worcestershire’s CCGs has been invited to the meeting.

Background

3. For the benefit of new HOSC Members, NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups 
took over responsibility for commissioning local health services in April 2013. They 
are organisations combining the expertise of local family doctors (GPs) and NHS 
managers; putting local doctors and nurses at the very heart of deciding what health 
services to provide, where and how. CCGs must constantly respond and adapt to 
changing local circumstances. They are responsible for the health of their entire 
population and are measured by how much they improve outcomes.  They are 
administrative organisations and do not directly deliver any services to the public so 
any changes in CCG configuration will not impact on service configuration.

4. Currently there are three CCGs in Worcestershire (South Worcestershire NHS 
CCG, Redditch and Bromsgrove NHS CCG and Wyre Forest NHS CCG).  The three 
Worcestershire CCGs already have a shared management team that has been in 
place since 2017 and have been holding Governing Body ‘meetings in common’ 
since April 2018 where in essence there is one meeting which conducts the business 
of the three CCGs.

5. Herefordshire has one CCG but shares an Accountable Officer and several other 
senior management positions with the Worcestershire CCGs.

6. HOSC Members were briefed on the new NHS Long Term Plan at its 5 March 
2019 meeting.  The NHS Long Term Plan presents the opportunity for all NHS 
organisations to radically change the way in which they work both internally and in 
partnership with one another to help support the development of Integrated Care 
Systems. 

7. For CCGs, there is an expectation that by April 2021 every Integrated Care 
System will have more streamlined commissioning arrangements to enable a single 
set of commissioning decisions at the Integrated Care System level. For 

Page 13



Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

Herefordshire and Worcestershire this will involve moving from four CCGs to a 
leaner, more strategic single CCG for Herefordshire and Worcestershire.

8. HOSC has been kept informed through a briefing note, the consultation 
document (attached at Appendix 1) and access to up to date information via the 
website -  www.southworcsccg.nhs.uk/get-involved-v2/current-engagement  

Purpose of the Meeting

9. To inform the HOSC about the proposed merger of Worcestershire and 
Herefordshire NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups and assess any potential 
implications for health services in Worcestershire.

Supporting Information

 Appendix – Consultation Document 

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report:

 Agenda and Minutes of HOSC on 5 March 2019 – available on the Council 
website here

Page 14

http://www.southworcsccg.nhs.uk/get-involved-v2/current-engagement/
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
https://worcestershireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=3024


1

Consultation Document 1st - 30th June 2019

Produced on behalf of:
NHS Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group
NHS Redditch and Bromsgrove Clinical Commissioning Group
NHS South Worcestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
NHS Wyre Forest Clinical Commissioning Group

The future of the 
Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Groups

Page 15



2

Contents

Introduction

Background

Why do we want to make changes?

What have we learnt so far?

What are the options?

Have your say

What happens next?

Frequently Asked Questions

3

4

6

7

8

9

9

10

Page 16



3

The four CCG organisations in Herefordshire and Worcestershire are: 

• NHS Herefordshire CCG
• NHS Redditch and Bromsgrove CCG

• NHS South Worcestershire CCG
• NHS Wyre Forest CCG

Introduction
This consultation asks for your views on options for changing the way NHS commissioning is arranged 
in Herefordshire and Worcestershire. 

Commissioning is about getting the best possible health outcomes for the local population. This involves assessing 
local needs, deciding priorities and strategies, and then buying services on behalf of the population from providers 
such as hospitals and GP practices. It is an ongoing process.

NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) took over responsibility for commissioning local health services in 
April 2013. They are organisations combining the expertise of local family doctors (GPs) and NHS managers; 
putting local doctors and nurses at the very heart of deciding what health services to provide, where and how.

CCGs must constantly respond and adapt to changing local circumstances. They are responsible for the health of 
their entire population and measured by how much they improve outcomes.

Each one is a legal body, with its own separate Governing Body (Board), although there are currently combined 
governance and decision-making arrangements in place across the four CCGs, and a single Accountable Officer 
whose responsibility it is for the management of all issues within each of the four organisations.

How long will the consultation run for?
 
The consultation will run from 1st June to 30th June 2019. 

What is not included in this consultation?
 
This consultation is specifically about the future of NHS commissioning arrangements in Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire. It is not a consultation regarding any other NHS organisation (or NHS-funded health) services and 
does not affect hospital or primary care (GP) services.

Herefordshire and Worcestershire have a total population of almost 800,000 people. Both have areas of affluence 
and areas of significant deprivation.

Page 17



4

The NHS Long Term Plan

In June 2018, the Prime Minister made a commitment 
that the Government would provide more funding for 
the NHS for each of the next five years. In return, the 
NHS was asked to come together to develop a long-
term plan for the future of the service, detailing its 
ambitions for improvement over the next decade, as 
well as the plans to meet them over the five years of 
the funding settlement.  

This plan – the NHS Long Term Plan - has now been 
published, and Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnerships (STPs) now need to develop and implement 
their own strategies for the next five years. 

Locally across Herefordshire and Worcestershire this 
strategy will set out how partners intend to take 
the ambitions that the NHS Long Term Plan details, 
and work together to turn them into local action to 
improve services and the health and wellbeing of local 
communities – building on the work that has already 
taken place.

Integrated Care Systems    

As part of the plan, Integrated Care Systems are planned to grow out 
of the existing STPs. An Integrated Care System is a way of working 
collaboratively between a range of health and social care organisations 
to help improve people’s health.  

The Herefordshire and Worcestershire Integrated Care System will 
allow various organisations to work together in a shared way; sharing 
budgets, staff and resources where appropriate to best meet people’s 
needs. In reality, this will mean GPs, district nurses, physiotherapists, 
social workers, the voluntary and community sector and other 
professions coming together to jointly take responsibility for ensuring 
that care is tailored for the needs of local communities across the two 
Counties. 

By working collaboratively with a range of organisations, the 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire Integrated Care System will help 
people to stay healthy and tackle the causes of illness, as well as wider 
factors that affect health such as education and housing. Commissioners 
and providers of acute hospital and community services, primary care, 
mental health and social care will increasingly work in partnership 
to plan, finance and run services in the interest of local patients.  

Integrated Care Systems are not a new concept. Integration of care is something that we in Herefordshire 
and Worcestershire have been providing for some years and means that we are really well prepared to take 
forward these ambitions. The local integrated care infrastructure is becoming quite well established and the joint 
commissioning arrangements are already in place across the Herefordshire and Worcestershire CCGs.

So, an Integrated Care System builds on the solid progress that has already been established. 

Background

Page 18



5

Changes to Commissioning

The NHS Long Term Plan presents the opportunity for all NHS organisations to radically change the way in which 
they work both internally and in partnership with one another to help support the development of Integrated 
Care Systems. 

For CCGs, there is an expectation that by April 2021 every Integrated Care System will have more 
streamlined commissioning arrangements to enable a single set of commissioning decisions at the 
Integrated Care System level. For Herefordshire and Worcestershire this will involve moving from four 
CCGs to a leaner, more strategic single CCG for Herefordshire and Worcestershire. 

In achieving this there will be a change to the role of the CCG itself, shifting from the traditional model of 
commissioning to one with a greater focus on strategic commissioning on a bigger geographical footprint and 
making shared decisions with providers on how to best use resources, design services and improve population 
health. The CCG will also have a role in supporting providers to partner with local government and other community 
organisations at county or ‘place’ level, and in ensuring that GPs and community services are supported to deliver 
at their local level. 

In Herefordshire and Worcestershire this will also include a shift of valuable clinical leadership resources, realigning 
them into roles where they will be better able to influence service delivery through developing Primary Care 
Networks and the new investment being aligned to these groups.

Page 19



6

Why do we want to make changes? 
Although the NHS Long Term Plan makes it very clear that a single CCG should be created across Herefordshire 
and Worcestershire, it is important to highlight that there are many advantages associated with merging the 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire CCGs. They are as follows:

Financial factors, and the potential for cost-savings through economies of scale have also been identified as a 
benefit from a potential merger. 

All CCGs are required to reduce their running costs by 20% by 31 March 2020, which means finding 
a saving of nearly £2 million across Herefordshire and Worcestershire. By creating one single CCG, 
instead of the current four, we estimate that we could save the required £2 million.

• A single commissioning organisation would mean single commissioning polices across the 
STP, putting an end to ‘postcode lotteries’ for services and treatments across Herefordshire 
and Worcestershire

• Less fragmentation of NHS commissioning organisations, allowing us to work together as 
‘one NHS’ and reduce confusion over multiple commissioning organisations

• Would support the move toward becoming an Integrated Care System, which in the long 
term will help us to focus on supporting people to stay healthy and tackle the causes of 
illness as well as the wider factors that affect health such as education and housing

• Although moving towards a larger geographical footprint, decisions made about individual 
patient care would still be taken at a local level by the clinicians who are responsible for 
looking after them

• Becoming a larger organisation would provide us with much greater resilience
• Working together as one organisation rather than four organisations would generate 

economies of scale and reduce duplication, creating opportunities for involvement in 
new areas of work to support career progression and freeing up capacity

• Would allow us to work in a new way, making best use of new technology to work 
smarter and in turn improve staff work-life balance

• Creating a single Executive Leadership Team across Herefordshire and Worcestershire 
would provide more consistent leadership and direction for staff working across the 
STP footprint

• Provides a single, strong and consistent vision and voice to partners
• Would support the move towards an Integrated Care System and working in partnership 

with providers
• Staff would have greater capacity to support partners as duplication of roles would be 

removed across the system
• Although moving towards a larger geographical footprint, there are well developed 

partnerships which share boundaries with the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Local 
Authorities which we value greatly and which we would be able to provide more focus on

• More integrated working with partners across Herefordshire and Worcestershire would 
allow various organisations to work together in a shared way; sharing budgets, staff and 
resources where appropriate to best meet people’s needs. This would also mean designing 
more innovative contracts which will provide more power and flexibility to providers while 
reducing the bureaucracy and inefficiency associated with multiple separate contracts

Benefits for Patients

Benefits for Staff

Benefits for Partners

Page 20



7

What have we learnt so far?  

Throughout our recent pre-consultation engagement with staff and key 
partners across Herefordshire and Worcestershire, we have consistently 
learnt that the following objectives are important to them:

Herefordshire and Worcestershire are made up 
of many different natural communities; a key 
consideration will be about how any new organisation 
can ensure it retains local focus and can respond to 
the different challenges across the two counties and 
that the respective local identities are not lost as part 
of a larger geographical footprint.

Consistency of commissioning, planning and access to services and 
treatments across Herefordshire and Worcestershire.

Maximising the potential benefits of the existing relationships 
that the four CCGs currently have with various partners and key 
stakeholders.

For staff, clarity of how a merger would affect their individual 
roles including whether they would be expected to travel more 
as part of a larger CCG.

Support for increased focus and resources for the development of 
the Integrated Care System, including the development of Primary 
Care Networks.

Ensuring that governance arrangements provide appropriate layers 
of accountability and decision-making, as well as making provision to 
enable membership involvement at smaller, more local footprints.

Page 21



8

Option Two: Creation of a single CCG for Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire by April 2021
This option would give us a single CCG, with one Management Team, one Governing Body and one set of 
statutory duties for the whole of Herefordshire and Worcestershire by 1 April 2021. 

An internal appraisal process of this option highlighted the following advantages and disadvantages:

What are the options? 

Option One: Creation of a single CCG for Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire by April 2020
This is our preferred option. 

This option would give us a single CCG, with one Management Team, one Governing Body and one set of 
statutory duties for the whole of Herefordshire and Worcestershire by 1 April 2020. 

An internal appraisal process of this option highlighted the following advantages and disadvantages:

We have identified two options for the future. 

These options have been refined from an original list of possibilities which also included the option to not merge 
at all and instead simply continue with alignment of roles and functions where it would be possible to do so. 
However, in light of the NHS Long Term Plan making it very clear that a single CCG should be created across 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire by April 2021, we have removed this as we do not believe that it is a realistic 
option. 

The two options are:

• Early merger will enable a two-step change, 
with 2020/21 then being focused on developing 
the new organisation into operating more 
effectively as a strategic system manager

• Minimises the period of change and disruption
• Early clarity for stakeholders and staff
• Optimises resources and reduces duplication
• This option will contribute most to delivery of 

required running cost savings
• Aligns with the expectations set out in NHS 

Long Term Plan

• Enough time to plan and design the future 
structure and align this closely with the 
function of a new strategic system manager

• Opportunity to learn from other CCGs who 
have completed the process in 2019/20

• Aligns with the expectations set out in NHS 
Long Term Plan

• Clear direction of travel for stakeholders

• Complex assurance process which is likely to 
distract staff from ‘business as usual’

• Tight time-scales to meet NHS England 
deadlines

• Risk of signalling a major change but taking 
two years to complete – likely to impact on 
staff productivity and retention

• Complex governance processes will still need 
to be introduced in the interim period while 
working towards full merger arrangements

• Required financial savings may not be 
delivered through this approach

Advantages

Advantages

Disadvantages

Disadvantages

Page 22



9

Have your say
What are we consulting on? 

We are running a consultation to ask for views on:

• Changes to the NHS commissioning organisations in Herefordshire and Worcestershire; and
• Specifically, two options, including a preferred option.

How can I have my say? 

We want to hear from anyone who wishes to share their views on the proposals set out in this document. 

To give us your views please complete our online survey at: bit.ly/HWmerge

Alternatively, to request a hard copy of the survey please write to:

Freepost Plus RTCU-KZKZ-EJZZ
NHS South Worcestershire CCG
The Coach House
John Comyn Drive
WORCESTER
WR3 7NS 

Consultation drop-in events

We are also holding free 2 hour drop-in public events in Herefordshire and Worcestershire so that local people 
can come along at any time to discuss the proposals, ask questions and give comments, ideas and suggestions. 
We will also be holding specific events for CCG staff and for GPs.

Area Location Date & Time
Hereford Committee Room 2, Hereford Town Hall 15:00 - 17:00 - 05/06/19

Worcester Meeting Room 2,The Hive, Worcester 17:00 - 19:00 - 12/06/19

Redditch Committee Room 2, Redditch Town Hall 11:00 - 13:00 - 13/06/19

Wyre Forest Stourport & Bewdley Rooms, WF District Council 14:00 - 16:00 - 14/06/19

North Herefordshire Conference Room, Leominster Library 11:00 - 13:00 - 20/06/19

South Herefordshire Dennis Potter Room, Ross-on-Wye Library 13:00 - 15:00 - 21/06/19

What happens next?
When the consultation closes on 30 June 2019 the consultation report, including all of the feedback that we 
have received, will be finalised. This will then be considered by the CCGs and NHS England, in order to help NHS 
England make a final decision regarding the future of the Herefordshire and Worcestershire CCGs later this year. 

The final decision will then be publicly announced at the next Governing Body Meeting of each CCG. 

There is no need to book to attend any of the drop-in sessions. Simply if you have any questions or concerns you 
want to raise with us just come along during the advertised times and we will be there for you to talk to. 

Page 23



10

Frequently Asked Questions
Why are you consulting about this and why can’t you just do it?

Has this happened anywhere else?

Why is option one your preference? 

Will this change the CCGs’ commissioning intentions?

Can you provide assurance that one area doesn’t lose out to the other?

What about seldom heard groups?

While not formally required to consult, we believe that following this process provides us with the best 
opportunity to hear from our people, communities and stakeholders and for them to meaningfully be able 
to help shape our proposal.

Yes. Across the country there are currently 70 CCGs considering proposals to merge into a total of 16 CCGs 
by April 2020. Locally this includes three CCGs across Coventry and Warwickshire as well as two CCGs 
across Shropshire and Telford and Wrekin. A few years ago, the three CCGs in Birmingham and Solihull also 
agreed to merge following a public consultation process. 

Option one (to merge by April 2020) is the best way to deliver future commissioning across the combined 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire STP area. It may be disruptive in the short term, but it would allow us to 
fairly quickly move towards less bureaucracy and more capacity, leading to services that are consistent, fair 
and high quality; offering consistency for patients and reducing health inequalities.

No. We are already working to a system wide plan; having a single commissioning voice will make it easier 
for us to achieve our objectives and commission consistently for patients. 

A single commissioning organisation will ensure that we are able to work more consistently and make our 
resources go further; delivering fair and equitable outcomes for patients.

We understand that there may be some concerns that local ‘grass roots’ engagement and relationships 
would be sacrificed. We would need to ensure that a consistent approach, based on best practice, was 
quickly implemented to ensure that this doesn’t happen.

There are also some excellent joint working initiatives already taking place across the all four current CCGs, 
which reflect the needs of local populations.

The CCGs have a legal duty, under the Equality Act 2010, to remove or minimise any disadvantages 
suffered by people due to their protected characteristics e.g. people from Black, Asian and minority 
ethnic backgrounds (BAME), disabled people and people from the lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans (LGBT) 
community. We work hard to fulfil our duty and this will continue to happen.

Page 24



11

What is an ‘Integrated Care System’?

How would a single CCG fit within an Integrated Care System?

How will the new governance arrangements work for a single CCG?

Have you made your decision already?

If the preferred option goes ahead, what will happen to staff?

If the preferred option goes ahead, where will the new CCG be based?

Integrated care systems (ICSs) bring together local NHS organisations, often in partnership with social care 
services and the voluntary sector. They build on the learning from and early results of NHS England’s new 
care model ‘vanguards’, which are showing benefits such as slowing emergency hospitalisations growth by 
up to two thirds compared with other less integrated parts of the country.

A single commissioning organisation would provide a consistent view across both Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire, regarding the principles and development of new models of care. The CCGs would become 
a more strategic and stronger commissioner, speaking with one voice, in line with the development of 
integrated care systems.

A single commissioning organisation would have one Accountable Officer, one Chair, a Governing Body 
and a single Management Team. All statutory obligations, committees and functions would be retained.

No, not at all. Whilst we have a preferred option, we have been engaging with a wide range of people to 
get their views on this and the other options. We need this feedback to ensure that we’re making the right 
choices and using their feedback to inform our thinking; it’s important that people tell us what they think 
about our plans.

If the preferred option is to merge the four CCGs by April 2020 this would mean reducing four Governing 
Bodies and the Executive Management Teams into one; there will naturally be some senior staff affected 
by this. However, it’s too early to comment on this, as the decision hasn’t been made on the future of the 
CCGs. 

What we can say is that we would make every effort to avoid any redundancies as part of the process, 
and instead manage this through natural turnover and in some cases looking at opportunities for staff to 
change roles.

It’s too early to comment on this, as the decision hasn’t been made on the future of the CCGs. However, 
there are currently three main office bases being used by the four CCGs (one in Bromsgrove, one in 
Hereford and one in Worcester) and we do not imagine that would change over the next few years at least. 

Page 25



12

Produced on behalf of:
NHS Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group
NHS Redditch and Bromsgrove Clinical Commissioning Group
NHS South Worcestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
NHS Wyre Forest Clinical Commissioning Group

If you would like a copy of this document in a different format or have any questions about the consultation 
please contact the Herefordshire and Worcestershire CCG Engagement Team at hw.engage@nhs.net

Page 26



  AGENDA ITEM 9 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JUNE 2019

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ROUND-UP 

Summary

1. To receive a round-up of information on:
 County Council activities in relation to health
 District Council activities in relation to health
 NHS Board meetings
 Consultations in Worcestershire
 Urgent health issues in Worcestershire; and
 Items for future meetings of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Background

2.   In order to ensure that Members of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(HOSC) are fully informed about issues relating to health scrutiny in Worcestershire, 
communication will be essential.  To assist in this, an item will be placed on the agenda for 
each meeting of the HOSC to consider consultations, County Council activities, District 
Council activities, urgent health issues arising in Worcestershire and future agenda items. 
Regard for the Council’s statutory requirements in relation to access to information will be 
critical.

County Council Activities in Relation to Health

3. A range of County Council services can impact upon and also be impacted upon by 
health services.  Recognising that the health-related work of the County Council will be 
of interest to the District Councillors on the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, an 
oral update on such activities, and on other matters the Chairman has been involved in, 
will be provided at each meeting by the Committee Chairman at each HOSC.

District Council Activities in Relation to Health

4. The statutory power of health scrutiny, including the power to require an officer of a 
local NHS body to attend before the Council, rests with the County Council.  However, it 
is recognised that a number of District Councils within Worcestershire are undertaking 
work in relation to local health issues, under their duty to promote the economic, social 
or environmental well-being of their area.

5. Recognising that the work of the District Councils will be of value and interest to the 
wider HOSC, an oral update will be provided on such activities by District Councillors at 
each meeting of the HOSC.

NHS Board Meetings

6. To help HOSC Members to keep up to date and maintain their knowledge of health 
issues around the County, it was agreed that a 'Lead Member/s' would be identified for 

Page 27



Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

each of the local NHS bodies to attend their Board Meetings and then provide an oral 
update at each HOSC.  

Consultations in Worcestershire

7. The HOSC has a duty to respond to local Health Trusts' consultations on any 
proposed substantial changes to local health services.  An oral update will be provided 
at each meeting of the HOSC on both developments relating to consultations previously 
undertaken and forthcoming consultations.

Urgent Health Issues in Worcestershire

8. Worcestershire County Council's constitution makes provision for urgent items to be 
considered.  Standing Order 12.2 specifies that the Chairman of the HOSC “may bring 
before the meeting and cause to be considered an item of business not specified in the 
summons or agenda where the Chairman is of the opinion, by reason of special 
circumstances (which shall be specified in the minutes) that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency”. 

9. Additionally, Standing Order 9.4.2 allows for the Chairman of the HOSC at any time 
to call a special meeting of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Standing 
Order 9.4.3 allows for at least one quarter of the members of the HOSC to requisition a 
special meeting of the HOSC.  Such a requisition must be in writing, be signed by each 
of the Councillors concerned, identify the business to be considered and be delivered to 
the Director of Commercial and Change.  In accordance with Access to Information 
Rules, the Council must give five clear days' notice of any meeting. 

Items for Future Meetings

10. It is necessary that the HOSC's ability to react to emerging health issues in a timely 
manner and the public’s expectation of this is balanced against Worcestershire County 
Council’s statutory duty to ensure that meetings and issues to be considered are open 
and transparent and meet legislative requirements.  This agenda item must not be used 
to raise non-urgent issues.  Any such issues should be raised with the Scrutiny Team at 
least two weeks in advance of a scheduled meeting of the HOSC.

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel; 01905 844964 / 844965
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the Proper Officer (in this case the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services) the following are the background papers relating to this report:

 Worcestershire County Council Procedural Standing Orders, May 2017 which can 
be accessed here

Page 28

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/downloads/download/57/worcestershire_councty_councils_constitution
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/downloads/download/57/worcestershire_councty_councils_constitution


AGENDA ITEM 10  
 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 JUNE 2019

WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

Summary

1. From time to time the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) will 
review its work programme and consider which issues should be investigated as a 
priority.

Background

2. Worcestershire County Council has a rolling annual Work Programme for 
Overview and Scrutiny.  The 2018/19 Work Programme has been developed by 
taking into account issues still to be completed from 2017/18, the views of Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel and HOSC Members and the findings of the budget scrutiny 
process.

3. Suggested issues have been prioritised using scrutiny feasibility criteria in order 
to ensure that topics are selected subjectively and the 'added value' of a review is 
considered right from the beginning.

4. The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutiny of:

 Local NHS bodies and health services (including public health and children’s 
health)

5. The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme was agreed by Council on 8 
November 2018.

Refresh of the Scrutiny Work Programme 2019/20

6. Plans are now being made to refresh the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2019/20.  
Throughout May and June, Members and other stakeholders will be invited to 
suggest topics for future scrutiny.  Informal sessions will be held where HOSC and 
Scrutiny Panel Members will be asked to prioritise these suggestions.
 
7. The Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board will receive feedback on the 
discussions and agree the final scrutiny work programme at its July meeting.  Council 
will be asked to agree the Work Programme in September.

Dates of Future Meetings

 18 September 2019
 25 November 2019

Page 29



Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 27 June 2019

Purpose of the Meeting

8. The HOSC may like to consider the 2018/9 Work Programme and whether it 
would like to make any amendments.  The HOSC will need to retain the flexibility to 
take into account any urgent issues which may arise from substantial NHS service 
changes requiring consultation with HOSC.

Supporting Information

Appendix – Health Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018/19

Contact Points

Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Background Papers

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report:

 Agenda and minutes of Council on 8 November 2018 – available on the Council 
website here

 Agenda and Minutes of OSPB on 26 September 2018 - available on the Council 
website here

Page 30

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2069&Ver=4
http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=2171&Ver=4


Appendix 1

2018/19 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME: Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting  Issue for Scrutiny Date of Last Report Notes/Follow-up
Action

27 June 2019 West Midlands Ambulance Services Annual Update 14 March 2018

27 June 2019 Stroke Services 13 December 2016 (Community 
Specialist Rehabilitation)

27 June 2019 Proposed Merger of Clinical Commissioning Groups - New Item

18 September 2019 Dental Services 13 December 2016 NHS England and Public Health

18 September 2019 Public Health – Ring Fenced Grant Update 16 November 2016

18 September 2019 Public Health - Smoking Cessation Update 19 July 2016 
(E-cigarettes)

25 November 2019 Audiology Services -  

TBC Access to GP Services 5 April 2017
TBC Mental Health (all age groups)
Ongoing Substantial NHS Service Changes requiring 

consultation with HOSC

Ongoing Quality and Performance of the Acute Hospitals 
(including capacity and preparations for winter 
pressures) 

26 November 2018
5 July 2018
29 January 2018

Ongoing Public Health (holding the Health and Wellbeing 
Board to account as appropriate and specifically 
updates on smoking cessation and funding 
arrangements)

Ongoing STP - ongoing workstreams (including updates on 
Neighbourhood Teams and Maternity Systems) / 

November 2018 (member 
briefing)

P
age 31



communication strategies / structure and 
governance (balance between the 2 Counties) / 
role of community hospitals / capital programme / 
capacity 

29 January 2018

In co-operation with Adult Care and Well Being 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel

 Financial Monitoring
 Performance Monitoring
 Budget Scrutiny Process

Standing Items Budget Scrutiny Process (jointly with Adult O&S 
Panel – see above)
Quality Accounts

P
age 32


	Agenda
	5 Vice Chairman
	6 West Midlands Ambulance Service Update
	7 Acute Stroke Services
	Item 7 Acute Stoke Services Appendix 1

	8 Proposed Merger of Worcestershire and Herefordshire NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups
	Item 8 CCG Merger Appendix 1

	9 Health Overview and Scrutiny Round-up
	10 Work Programme 2018/19
	Item 10 Work Programme Appendix 1 2018-2019


